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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Cont estant, Blue Di anond Coal Conpany (Blue Di anond), has
filed notices of contest challenging the issuance of section
104(d) (1) Order No. 3370844 (Docket No. KENT 89-258-R), section
104(d) (2) Order Nos. 3372825, 3372824, and 3372827 (Docket Nos.
KENT 90-68-R, -79-R, and -80-R, respectively) and section 107(a)
Order No. 3372371 (Docket No. KENT 90-81-R) at its Scotia M ne.
The Secretary of Labor (Secretary) has filed a petition seeking
civil penalties in the total amount of $4000 for the violations
charged in the above four contested "d" orders. No penalty was
assessed, of course, for the section 107(a) order

Pursuant to notice, these cases were heard in London,
Kentucky on May 30, 1990 (Docket Nos. KENT 89-258-R and KENT
90-67) and August 7, 1990 (the other five). They are consol i dated
here for purposes of decision as they are related matters,
particularly with respect to the applicability of the "d" chain.

At the hearing on August 7, 1990, Blue Di anond noved to
wi thdraw its application for review in Docket No. KENT 90-81-R
There was no objection heard fromthe Secretary and thus I
approved that withdrawal on the record. That proceeding is
therefore dism ssed without further consideration. The section
107(a) order will, of course, be affirned.

STI PULATI ONS

The parties have agreed to the follow ng five stipulations,
which | accept (Gov't Ex. No. 1):

1. The operator produced approxi mately 1,315,000 tons
of coal at the Scotia Mne in 1989.

2. The operator enployed approxi mately 300 workers at
the Scotia Mne during the final quarter of 1989.

3. The civil penalty assessment will not affect the
operator's ability to continue in business.

4. The operator has another mne of approxinmately the
same size as the Scotia M ne.

5. The presiding administrative | aw judge has
jurisdiction to hear and decide this case.

| . Docket No. KENT 89-258-R Order No. 3370844

On August 16, 1989, Order No. 3370844 was issued pursuant to
section 104(d)(1) of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of
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1977, 30 U.S.C. 0O 801 et seq. (the Act) and alleges a violation
of the regulatory standard at 30 CF. R 0O 75.220(a)(1) and
charges as follows (Government Ex. No. 4):

The approved roof control plan for the mne, revised
05-23-89, which requires that if travel is blocked from
the longwal |l section to the tailgate entry, the mners
will be notified and re-instructed regardi ng escape
procedures in the event of an emergency, and |ocation
and availability of self-contained self-rescue devices,
is not being conplied with in the MW, 040-0 | ongwal
shear section. Access to the tailgate entry is bl ocked
as a result of the Iongwall face conveyor being off
center. The tailgate is |located approximtely 5 feet
outby the solid coal rib line, and as mning progresses
the crushed coal and other material is being left
behi nd preventing access to the tailgate entry.
According to the Section Foreman, Bill Vann, the mners
have not been notified and instructed as required by

t he roof control plan

The crux of the matter is that the inspector states that
passage fromthe longwall face area to the tailgate entry was
bl ocked. He mmintains that coal was "stacked in" fromthe floor
to the roof. There was no access into the tailgate entry, except
a small opening up near the face of the wall, about 12 by 14
i nches.

The fact that a tailgate entry is blocked does not in and of
itself violate the regulations. The alleged violation hereinis a
failure to conply with the roof control plan. Mre specifically,
a provision of the plan requires that where travel out of the
section through the tailgate side of the longwall section is
prevented by a ground failure, the operator nust take severa
steps. Anmong themare to notify the affected m ners that the
travelway is blocked and re-instruct these miners regarding
escapeways, escape procedures and the availability and | ocation
of self-contained self-rescue devices. The conplete list is
cont ai ned on page 15, item 6 of Government Ex. No. 2.

This case turns on the condition precedent to the above roof
control plan provision. Did the operator have a duty to perform
these functions? Was the tailgate entry bl ocked? The answer
depends on the assignnment of credibility to the various
Wi tnesses. The Secretary's witnesses state it was definitely
bl ocked. The operator's witnesses state just as definitely that
it was not.

I nspector Davis, who wote the order, of course testified to
the effect that with the exception of the small opening all uded
to earlier, the tailgate entry was bl ocked and travel out into
the tailgate entry was therefore precluded. However, his
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testimony is weakened somewhat by his own adm ssion that he nmade
this observation froma di stance of approximately fifteen feet
away, at shield 141. There are 144 |ongwall shields, each five
feet wide, to hold up the roof across the face area.

Phot ographs of the area in question introduced by Bl ue
Di anmond through the testinmony of M. Childers, who was and is the
| ongwal | coordinator, depict the inpossibility of seeing the
cl earance the conpany says was there fromtoo far away. M.
Childers testified using one of these photos at Tr. 147:

A. Ckay. This photograph here is inside the shield Iine
| ooking out into the tailgate entry.

MR. LUCKETT: And that is marked BD Exhibit 5.

(BY MR MAY) So for the judge's edification, M.
Childers, if one were 15 feet back up in here, this
pretty clearly shows the view how one would not be able
to determ ne access into the tailgate entry if you
didn't go any further?

A. If you didn't go any further to | ook at, you
couldn't, because the way the shields are, the shield
range--they start out here, and they're about 6 inches
thick. They go right on down to maybe a foot thick at
the back ends of '"em If they have any material at al
on top of them they are |Iower than the roof |ine. And
when the shear cuts out and piles the coal up, if you

| ook--just stand back there and | ook straight down |ike
you' re | ooking out into the tail entry, you'll just see
a pile of coal. If you don't go to the end of the
shields, you can't see over the top of the coal that's
been piled up.

M. Tommy Engle, a field office supervisor and a fornmer
under ground coal nine inspector, also testified on behalf of the
Secretary. He also, |ike Inspector Davis, was on the subject
[ ongwal | section on August 16, 1989. He states that coal had
accunmul ated in the area of the tailgate entry to the point it had
totally bl ocked passage into the tailgate entry. The coal was
packed fromthe mne floor to against the roof, with a slight
openi ng near the roof at the end of the longwall face. This
openi ng was approxi mately twelve by twelve inches. This testinony
is perfectly congruent with that of Inspector Davis.

There is sone discrepancy in M. Engle's testinony, however,
as to where he made this observation from At trial, he
enphatically stated that he went up to the last shield, up to the
accurul ati on and even tried to push his way through the
accurul ati on. However, his deposition testinony, given on My 2,
1990, was to the effect that he stopped 14 feet fromthe area
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where MSHA all eges the tailgate entry was bl ocked, stood there
for three or four mnutes evaluating whether he could see over
the top of the accunul ation and then turned around and went back
towards the headgate entry. It was while he was there in that
position that he determ ned that the coal was stacked to the roof
and the travelway was totally blocked off (Engle Deposition Tr.
6-7). Therefore, | find M. Engle's trial testinobny on this point
to be inpeached by his prior inconsistent statenent.

M. Billy Vann, a longwall production foreman, testified
that he took a spad measurenent and a net hane reading out in the
tailgate entry at approximtely 1:45 a.m on August 16, 1989. At
that time he had between 2 and 3 feet of clearance between the
| oose coal and the roof going into the tailgate entry. M. Vann
was again at the tailgate exit area at approximately 6:00 a.m At
that time, only one pass or cut-out of coal had been done by the
longwal | . Vann stated that at this tinme the tailgate entry was
not bl ocked and was accessible, there still being approxinmately 2
to 3 feet of clearance.

The subject order was issued at 8:35 a.m and Vann testified
that he informed Inspector Davis at 8:45 a.m that the tailgate
entry was not blocked in his opinion but that Davis said he
thought it was and turned and asked Supervi sor Engle his opinion
Engle stated that he felt the sane way as Davis even though al
of this conversation took place at approximately 8:45 a.m in the
headgate entry area and Engle had not even been to the tailgate
entry area yet. He didn't go there until approximtely 9:15 a.m

M. Vann al so opined that if one merely stopped at shield
141 and | ooked as I nspector Davis did, the bottom of the shield
woul d have been just about even with the | ocose coal and the
cl earance woul d not have been visible fromthere.

James S. Owens was a repairman on the longwall section on
August 16, 1989. He, along with fellow repairnman, Rex Conley, did
repair work in the tailgate exit area until approxi mtely 4:00
a.m that norning. They both saw Bill Vann go over into the
tailgate entry to take his neasurements and net hane check that
morni ng. They testified to the effect that Vann had no trouble
going into the tailgate entry and that it was not bl ocked. They
al so both indicated that they |ikew se woul d have had no
difficulty getting in the tailgate entry if there had been any
need.

Donal d Wal ker was the tail gate shear operator on the
[ ongwal | on August 16, 1989. Wal ker testified that one pass or
cut-out was made by the longwall the entire third shift and he
was right at the tailgate entry area at approxi mately 6:00 a. m,
after the one cut-out or pass had been made. At this tine and
until 8:00 a.m, Walker stated the tailgate entry was never
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bl ocked and that it was accessi ble without the necessity of
shovel i ng.

Ri cky Canpbel|l was the headgate shear operator on the
| ongwal | on August 16, 1989, working the third shift. Canpbell
first went to the tailgate exit side of the |ongwall at
approximately 6:00 a.m At that tinme one pass or cut-out had been
done and Canpbell stated he could see that the tailgate entry was
not bl ocked and he could have gotten over into the entry.

Sam Fout ch was a shield puller working the day shift (7:00
a.m to 5:00 p.m) on August 16, 1989. Foutch explained that a
shield puller advances the shields on the |longwall as the pan
advances. On August 16, Foutch worked on pulling shields 96 to
the end of the tailgate, or shield 144. He was performng this
work at approximately 9:00 a.m, around shield 144 next to the
tailgate entry, and he states that the tailgate entry was not
bl ocked at this tine. This is some 25 minutes after the order was
witten. In fact, Foutch stated that he shovel ed | oose coal and
rock off the pontoons of the shields over into the tailgate entry
and thus, he knows the tailgate entry could not have been
bl ocked. This witness also stated he saw Bob Chil ders go over
into the tailgate entry at approximately 9:00 a.m to get a
measurenent to see how the | ongwal |l was running.

Doyl e Cornett was a production foreman on the longwall face
August 16, 1989, working the day shift. Cornett first got to the
section around 8:00 a.m acconpani ed by Inspector Davis. He
reaffirmed that Davis only went as far as shield 141 and did not
go on down to the | ast shield by the tailgate entry which would
have been 15 to 18 feet away in his estimation. Cornett also
opi ned that one could not see behind the shields into the
tailgate entry fromthat position.

James Robert (Bob) Childers was the |ongwall coordinator on
August 16, 1989, working the day shift. Childers was acconpani ed
underground at approximately 7:15 a.m, by |Inspector Davis and
Supervi sor Engle. He stayed at the headgate area of the | ongwal
with Engle while Davis and Doyl e Cornett travelled toward the
tailgate exit area at approxinmately 8:00 a.m Between 8:45 a. m
and 9:00 a.m, Childers went to the tailgate exit area hinself
after the order had been issued. Childers explained that he went
to check the tailgate entry hinself because he had been told that
I nspector Davis didn't go all the way to the end of it. He stated
that his own exanination revealed that the tailgate entry was not
bl ocked and was accessi bl e and he even went out into the entry
hi nsel f through a 2 foot by 2 foot clearance.

Whi | e headi ng back toward the headgate area after his
exam nation he ran into Engle com ng down the panline. Together
they went back toward the tailgate entry. Engle stopped at
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shield 141 according to Childers and never went further. Childers
stated that Engle never was out of his sight during this tinme and
that Engle did not go to the tailgate entry and try to push his
way through as Engle has testified to.

Before | eaving the stand, Childers also reiterated the
al nost universally held position that one would not be able to
deternmine if the tailgate entry was bl ocked or not fromshield
141 or 15 feet away because of the obstructed view and |ine of
si ght.

Based on ny thorough review of this trial record once again,
I find the evidence to be sinply overwhelm ng in favor of Bl ue
Di amond' s position on the ultimate factual issue. | |ikew se nake
the credibility choices in their favor and I find as a fact that
the tailgate entry was not bl ocked; it was at the tinme the order
was i ssued, open and passable, accessible to the affected miners.

It therefore follows that Blue Dianmond did not violate 30
C.F.R 0 75.220 (a)(1) as charged and Order No. 3370844 will
accordi ngly be vacat ed.

1. Docket Nos. KENT 90-68-R, -79-R AND -80-R; Order
Nos. 3372825, 3372824 and 3372827

Al'l three of these orders were issued pursuant to section
104(d) (2) of the Act. However, because | informed the parties
that | was going to vacate section 104(d) (1) Order No. 3370844,
the Secretary, at the hearing on August 7, 1990 noved to convert
Order No. 3372824 to a section 104(d)(1) Citation, Order No.
3372825 to a 104(d) (1) Order and Order No. 3372827 would remain a
(d)(2) Order. This would have the effect of re-starting the "d"
chain on Decenmber 11, 1989

Order No. 3372824 alleges a violation of the mandatory
standard found at 30 C.F. R 0O 75.400 and charges as fol |l ows
(Government Exhibit No. 3):

Loose coal and fine dry coal dust have been permtted
to accunmulate 3" to 9" inches in depth, (as

measured with a standard nmeasuring tape) in the Nos 2,
3 and 4 entries of the MW 032-0 begi nning at the
section | oadi ng point and extending inby for a distance
of approximtely 180 feet. The accunul ati ons are
intermttent and the coal has been crushed and

pul veri zed by the 105C Joy Shuttle Cars during haul age
operati ons.

I nspector Davis was again the inspector who found this
violation and he testified to the effect that he observed
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accunul ati ons of |oose coal and fine, dry coal dust in the
roadways fromrib to rib in Nos. 2, 3 and 4 entries. He nmeasured
t hese accunul ati ons and found themto be 3 to 9 inches in depth
begi nning at the section |oading point and extending inby for a
di stance of approximately 180 feet. These bl ack accunul ati ons
were intermttent and were pulverized by the shuttle cars
traveling in the roadways.

He also testified that the danger presented by these
accunul ations is a mne fire or a mne explosion. Furthernore,
where you have accunul ati ons of conmbustible materials, there is
al ways the possibility that you will have a methane ignition in
the face area and these accumul ati ons woul d cause the ignition to
probably spread or propagate into other areas of the mne
dependi ng how fine, dry and pulverized the accunul ations are.
There was a | ot of electrical equipnent on the section at the
time as well. A power center was |ocated just 30 feet fromthe
accurul ations. He felt that serious injuries were reasonably
likely to occur to the section crew such as snoke inhalation in
the event of a mine fire, which occurrence he also believed to be
reasonably likely. He further opined that if you had a nethane
ignition which propagated into a mne dust explosion, then it
could be fatal. Therefore, he believed the violation was
"significant and substantial".

He al so marked the negligence as "high". He felt this was an
"unwarrantabl e" violation as well as "S & S". He estimted the
accurrul ati ons had been there for at |east two production shifts
based on the pulverized condition of the accumul ati ons and their
dept h. However, when directly asked on cross-exam nation, he had
to admit that he did not know how |l ong the accumul ati ons had been
in the roadways.

I nspector Carlos Smith corroborated Davis' factual testinony
regardi ng the description of the accunul ations, estinmating the
depth as between 8-10 inches of |oose, pulverized coal. But he
i kewi se couldn't say for sure how |l ong these accumul ati ons had
exi sted, but he estimated that they had been there for a shift or
t wo.

There is no doubt that a violation of 30 C.F.R 0O 75.400
exi sted as the inspectors described it. Furthernore, | also
believe the violation was "significant and substantial" (S & S).

A "significant and substantial" violation is described in
section 104(d)(1) of the Mne Act as a violation "of such nature
as could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause
and effect of a coal or other m ne safety or health hazard." 30
CF.R [0814(d)(1). Aviolation is properly designated
significant and substantial "if, based upon the particular facts
surroundi ng the violation there exists a reasonable |ikelihood
that the hazard contributed to will result in an injury or
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illness of a reasonably serious nature." Cenment Division
Nati onal Gypsum Co., 3 FMSHRC 822, 825 (April 1981).

In Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1, 3-4 (January 1984), the
comm ssion explained its interpretation of the term "significant
and substantial" as foll ows:

In order to establish that a violation of a nmandatory
safety standard is significant and substantial under
Nati onal Gypsumthe Secretary of Labor nust prove: (1)
t he underlying violation of a mandatory safety
standard; (2) a discrete safety hazard--that is, a
measure of danger to safety-contributed to by the
violation; (3) a reasonable likelihood that the hazard
contributed to will result in an injury; and (4) a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that the injury in question wll
be of a reasonably serious nature.

In United States Steel M ning Conpany, Inc., 7 FMSHRC 1125,
1129 (August 1985), the Conmi ssion stated further as follows:

We have explained further that the third el ement of the
Mat hies forrmula "requires that the Secretary establish
a reasonabl e |ikelihood that the hazard contributed to
will result in an event in which there is an injury."
US. Steel Mning Co., 6 FMSHRC 1834, 1836 (August
1984). We have enphasi zed that, in accordance with the
| anguage of section 104(d)(1), it is the contribution
of a violation to the cause and effect of a hazard that
nmust be significant and substantial. U S. Steel Mning
Conpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1866, 1868 (August 1984); U.S.
Steel M ning Conmpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1573, 1574-75
(July 1984).

The question of whether any particular violation is
significant and substantial nust be based on the particular facts
surroundi ng the violation, including the nature of the mne
i nvol ved, Secretary of Labor v. Texasgulf, Inc, 10 FMSHRC 498
(April 1988); Youghi ogheny & Ohi o Coal Conpany, 9 FMSHRC 2007
(Decenber 1987).

In this regard, | fully credit the unrebutted and
essentially unopposed testinony of |Inspector Davis on the issues
of gravity, seriousness and S & S.

In several relatively recent decisions concerning the
interpretati on and application of the term "unwarrantable
failure,” the Conm ssion has further refined and explained this
term and concluded that it means "aggravated conduct,
constituting nore than ordinary negligence, by a mne operator in
relation to a violation of the Act." Enery M ning Corporation, 9
FMSHRC 1997 (Decenber 1987); Youghi ogheny & Chi o Coal Conpany,
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9 FMSHRC 2007 (December 1987); Secretary of Labor v. Rushton

M ni ng Conpany, 10 FMSHRC 249 (March 1988). Referring to its
prior holding in the Emery Mning case, the Commi ssion stated as
follows in Youghi ogheny & Chio, at 9 FMSHRC 2010:

We stated that whereas negligence is conduct that is
"inadvertent," "thoughtless" or "inattentive,"
unwar r ant abl e conduct is conduct that is described as
"not justifiable" or "inexcusable". Only by construing
unwarrantable failure by a mine operator as aggravated
conduct constituting nmore than ordinary negligence, do
unwarrant abl e failure sanctions assune their intended
distinct place in the Act's enforcenent schene.

Al though | find the allegation at bar to be an S & S
violation of the mandatory standard charged, | cannot go al ong
with the inspector's alleged finding of "unwarrantability." H's
finding is based alnost solely, if not entirely on the measured
depth of the accumul ations. He hinmself admts he doesn't know how
long they were there. That is the government's only evidence on
the issue of negligence and unwarrantability. | find that to be
insufficient to sustain the Secretary's burden of proof on this
poi nt. Accordingly, the proposed section 104(d)(1) Citation, nee
104(d) (2) Order No. 3372824, will be nodified to and affirmed as
an S & S section 104(a) citation.

If Order No. 3372824 cannot be converted into a "d" citation
and beconmes an "a" citation, as it has, then proposed Order Nos.
3372825 and 3372827, being non-S & S allegations to begin with
al so becone section 104(a) citations, wherein the only issues are
the fact of violation and the civil penalty to be assessed, if
any violation(s) is/are found.

Order No. 3372825 alleges a non-S & S violation of the
mandat ory standard found at 30 C.F. R 0O 75.316 and charges as
foll ows (Government Exhibit No. 5):

The approved ventilation system and nmet hane and dust
control plan for the mine, which requires that the |ine
of permanent stopping separating the intake and return
ai rcourses shall be maintained up to and including the
3rd connecting crosscut outby the faces, is not being
conplied with in the MW 032-0 working section. The
line of pernmanent stopping separating the Nos. 1 and 2,
i ntake and return aircourse entries is only being

mai ntai ned up to and including the fourth connecting
crosscut outby the faces. The quantity of air passing

t hrough the | ast open crosscut outby the faces is
42,826 cfm The maxi mum amount of CH4 detected was

0. 2%
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I nspector Davis testified that he observed a violation of the
approved ventilation plan for the mne which requires that they
(the operator) maintain the |ine of permanent stopping separating
the intake and return air courses up to and including the third
connecting crosscut outby the working faces. The |ine of
per manent stopping providing this separation in the affected
section he found was only being nmaintained up to and i ncl udi ng
the fourth connecting crosscut outby the faces.

The foregoing establishes a non-S & S violation to ny
sati sfaction and after nodification, section 104(a) Citation No.
3372825 will be affirmed as nodified.

Order No. 3372827 alleges a non-S & S violation of the
mandat ory standard found at 30 C.F. R 0O 75.1105 and charges as
foll ows (Government Ex. No. 7):

An energi zed 480 Volt A.C. battery charger |ocated

adj acent to the return aircourse stopping line at a
poi nt approxi mately 20 feet inby station spad No.
15325, is being used to recharge the batteries on an
Ei nco coal scoop in the MW 032-0 working section, and
the battery charger is not being ventilated into the
return aircourse. The newy constructed pernmanent type
st oppi ng | ocated between the battery charger and the
return aircourse, is not provided with a ventilation
regul ator, (opening) to permt direction of the air
current.

I nspector Davis once again testified on behalf of the
Secretary. On Decenber 12, 1989, he found that a new stoppi ng had
been constructed in the third connecting crosscut outby the
wor king faces to correct the previously discussed violation.
However, they (the operator) had an energized battery charging
station inrediately in front of the stopping and had not provided
a means in the stopping or a regulator to direct the air current
directly into the return

The cited regulation requires that battery charger stations
be ventilated directly into the return air course. Instead, the
i nspector found that the air was going to the return aircourse in
a roundabout way. The air was not going across the charger. There
was nothing to direct it across the charger and there was no
regulator in the stopping to provide a | ow pressure drop across
the charging station, which would have been necessary in order to
ventilate this charging station directly to the return aircourse

The foregoing testinony establishes a non-S&S viol ati on of
the cited standard and after nodification to a section 104(a)
citation, Citation No. 3372827 will be affirmed as nodified.
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Wth regard to the civil penalty assessnents herein, | am not
bound by MSHA proposed civil penalty assessnments, and once a
penalty is contested and Conmm ssion jurisdiction attaches, ny
determ nati on of the anount of the penalty is de novo, based upon
the statutory penalty criteria and the record devel oped in the
adj udi cati on of the case. See: Sellersburg Stone Conpany, 5
FMSHRC 287 (March 1983), aff'd., 736 F.2d 1147 (7th Cir. 1984);
United States Steel Mning Co., Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1148 (May 1984).

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons, and
taking into account the six statutory civil penalty assessnent
criteria found in section 110(i) of the Act, | conclude and find
that the following civil penalty assessnents are reasonabl e and
appropriate in the circunmstances of this case:

Citation No. Dat e 30 CF.R Section Assessment
3372824 12/ 11/ 89 75. 400 $400
3372825 12/ 11/ 89 75. 316 $150
3372827 12/ 12/ 89 75. 1105 $100

I1l. Docket No. KENT 90-81-R;, Order No. 3372371

Order No. 3372371 was issued pursuant to section 107(a) of
the Act. Contestant filed an application for review However, at
t he hearing on August 7, 1990, counsel for Blue Di anpond stated on
the record at Tr. 100-101 that: "[My client has infornmed ne that
t he recomendati ons made pursuant to that order. . . were good
ones and that they are conplying with that." Therefore, he sought
perm ssion to withdraw their application for review. There was no
obj ection and the request was granted. The order will be
af firmed.

ORDER

Based on the above findings of fact and conclusions of | aw,
IT IS ORDERED

1. Order No. 3370844, contested in Docket No. KENT 89-258-R
I S VACATED

2. Order No. 3372824, contested in Docket No. KENT 90-79-R
properly charged a violation of 30 C.F. R 0O 75.400 and properly
found that the violation was significant and substanti al
However, the contested order inproperly concluded that the
violation resulted from Consol's unwarrantable failure to conply
with the mandatory safety standard i nvolved. Therefore, the
violation was not properly cited in a section 104(d)(2) order or
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as | ater proposed, a section 104(d)(1) citation. Accordingly,
Order No. 3372824, |S HEREBY MODIFIED to a O 104(a) citation, AND
AFFI RVED.

3. Modified Citation No. 3372825, contested in Docket No.
KENT 90-68-R, |S AFFI RMED as a non-S&S violation of 30 CF. R 0O
75. 316.

4. Modified Citation No. 3372827, contested in Docket No.
KENT 90-80-R, |S AFFI RMED as a non-S&S violation of 30 CF. R 0O
75.1105.

5. Order No. 3372371, contested in Docket No. KENT 90-81-R,
| S AFFI RVED.

6. The Bl ue Di anond Coal Conpany |S HEREBY ORDERED TO PAY a
civil penalty of $650 within 30 days of the date of this
deci si on.

Roy J. Maurer
Adm ni strative Law Judge



